
 
 
 

DIVERSION AUTHORITY 
Land Management Committee 

City Commission Room 
Fargo City Hall 

Wednesday, March 22, 2017 
3:00 p.m. 

 

 

1. Agenda Review 

2. Approve February 22, 2017 Minutes (item A) 

3. Property Acquisition Report (item B) 

4. CCJWRD Update 

5. Draft Mitigation Plan Adoption 

6. Upstream Impacts & Mitigation 

a. Richland / Wilkin Impact Updates (items C & D) 

b. Structure Impacts Analysis Update 

7. Other business 

8. Next meeting April 26, 2017 

 



DIVERSION AUTHORITY 
Land Management Committee 

City Commission Room 
Fargo City Hall 

Wednesday, February 22, 2017 
3:00 p.m. 

Present: Cass County Commission Representative Mary Scherling (via teleconference); 
Clay County Commission Representative Kevin Campbell; Clay County Commission 
Representative Jenny Mongeau; Fargo City Administrator Bruce Grubb; Fargo Division 
Engineer Nathan Boerboom; Cass County Commission Representative Chad Peterson; 
Oxbow Mayor Jim Nyhof. 

Others present: Eric Dodds - AE2S; Mark Brodshaug - Cass County Joint Water 
Resource District (CCJWRD) 

Absent: Cass County Joint Water Resource District Representative Rodger Olson; 
Moorhead Mayor Del Rae Williams; Moorhead City Engineer Bob Zimmerman; 
Moorhead City Council Representative Heidi Durand; Fargo City Commission 
Representative John Strand. 

The meeting was called to order by Mark Brodshaug. 

Agenda Review 
Eric Dodds said a letter from United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 
regarding deadlines for land acquisitions for cultural resource testing and biotic and 
geomorphic monitoring was added to the agenda.  Kevin Campbell moved the Order of 
Agenda be approved. Jenny Mongeau seconded the motion. All the members voted aye 
and the motion was declared carried. 

Approve January 11, 2017 Minutes 
Mr. Campbell moved the minutes from the January 11, 2017 meeting be approved.  Mr. 
Nyhof seconded the motion. All the members voted aye and the motion was declared 
carried. 

Property Acquisition Update 
Mr. Dodds said the Property Acquisition Status Report includes updates of Diversion 
channel Phase 1, which is the north end of the channel and sites for the Maple River 
and Sheyenne River aqueducts. He said Phase 2 is all other properties north of 
Interstate 94 along the channel. He said opportunistic acquisitions could be anywhere; 
however, most have been in the staging area. He said monitoring sites are scattered 
across Cass and Richland counties and his team is helping the Corps get rights-of-entry 
and easements on those sites. He said these are areas where the Corps has committed 
to long-term environmental monitoring and adaptive management for the project. He 
said the Corps starts by monitoring biotic conditions before the project starts and 
establishes a baseline. He said as the project operates, the Corps will continue to 
monitor those conditions and if anything unique happens, they will adapt and manage 
those sites accordingly. He said this involves many parcels upstream and downstream 
and not all of the sites are along the channel. He said culturally sensitive areas need to 

  Item A



be mitigated prior to construction and there is pre-design work that needs to be done, so 
his team is working with the Corps to secure those lands. 
 
Mr. Brodshaug said there will be Minnesota biotic monitoring sites at some point in Clay 
and Wilkin counties. He said the Corps is still working with the Minnesota Department of 
Natural Resources (MDNR) so the decision was made to start baseline work in North 
Dakota, then come back at a later point and establish a baseline in Minnesota.  He said 
there are no requests for Minnesota properties yet.  
 
In response to a question from Mr. Boerboom about a timeline for getting land for the 
Wild Rice and Drayton dam projects, Mr. Dodds said it depends on funding for the 
Corps for those projects this year. He said if the Corps does get funding, those two dam 
projects are in their work plan. He said the Corps would have to obligate those dollars 
by fall. He said there have been meetings with the City of Drayton and American Crystal 
Sugar and it seems there is willingness to secure those land rights. 
 
In response to a question from Ms. Mongeau about Minnesota and Clay County biotic 
monitoring sites and when will the locations will be known, Mr. Dodds said locations 
have been identified and residents will be getting letters; however, he was not sure who 
would send out the letters. 
 
Mr. Campbell said there is sensitivity of the position with the MDNR and there is no 
activity in Minnesota; therefore, that is partially why there is no activity.  
 
Mr. Dodds shared a heat map with the Land group, which showed a range of appraised 
or acquired land values. He said those who follow farmland values know values have 
changed quite a bit. He said with land prices low, now would be a good time to buy. He 
said the Phase 2 land parcels map shows the status of the land and parcel acquisitions.  
 
In response to a question from Mr. Campbell as to if there have been any voluntary 
buyouts, Mr. Brodshaug said there were some voluntary buyouts. 
 
CCJWRD Update 
Mr. Dodds said the letter from the Corps added to the Agenda packet was to put some 
things in writing about deadlines for acquisitions of property. He said the Corps wants to 
know when the sites in North Dakota will be ready for biotic study and cultural 
mitigation. He said three sites for cultural mitigation have been identified. He said there 
are a lot of moving parts; however, he will be drafting a letter back to the Corps by 
February 27, 2017, after a discussion with the CCJWRD board. He said, in particular, 
committing to a deadline for having the land rights may require the joint board to take 
some actions if voluntary deals are not completed and court action may be necessary. 
He said he feels confident the land can be acquired by June 1, 2017 as noted in the 
letter from the Corps, and he feels substantially more confident with a July 1, 2017 date.  
 
Mr. Brodshaug said there have been many talks about Phase 1 buyouts. He said the 
first deadlines are cultural work that is a priority due to requirements of the National 
Historic Protection Act. 
 



In response to a question from Ms. Scherling about the letter and is there a reason time 
constraints are so short, Mr. Dodds said the Corps has the responsibility of mitigating 
the cultural sites prior to construction on the channel. The Corps wants to mitigate those 
sites in 2017, he said, and right now, the P3 schedule suggests a financial close with 
the P3 contractor a year from now. He said the Corps has to complete cultural 
mitigation work on two sites, which are archaeological digs and they know there are 
artifacts. He said the cultural mitigation process will take about four to five months; 
therefore, access to the land is needed by the middle of this year to complete the 
cultural work prior to the 2018 construction season. He said work to secure those rights 
is continuing. He said a third site does not have the full extent of an archaeological dig 
yet; however, potholing in the area is needed to determine the extent of artifacts. 
 
Mr. Brodshaug said the locations of most of these have been known and the letter is 
confirming a deadline for contracting purposes. 
 
In response to a question from Ms. Scherling as to if landowners were being 
cooperative, Mr. Brodshaug said landowners were being cooperative; however, there 
are details and differences in valuations and talks are ongoing.  
 
Oxbow Home Removals 
Mr. Dodds provided a map of Oxbow indicating green parcels are build-ready and blue 
parcels are properties where the home removal project is ongoing. He said six of 11 
homes in the blue area have been removed and will be repurposed. He said the 
Finance Committee wanted to know if the Land group was comfortable proceeding with 
the next phase of home removal in Oxbow. The two primary questions, he said, include 
making sure there are as many opportunities as possible for reuse of Oxbow homes 
and any homes bought for the Diversion project. He said the city and county have been 
through hundreds of buyouts over the last several years and tried different approaches. 
He said the best approach so far has been to package up a number of homes, issue a 
removal construction package that requires the contractor to move the homes, demolish 
the foundations, remove utilities and backfill and establish it ready for construction. He 
said contractors then have the opportunity to sell anything above ground and let the 
market dictate whether there is an interest in flood buyout homes or not. In the first 
round, he said, there were 11 homes and the contractor sold or is going to repurpose 
eight of them. He said they also received a very good bid price from the contractor. The 
second question from Finance, he said, is now the right time to be moving forward with 
the next round of home removal. He said there is lawsuit activity and an injunction 
against levee construction in Oxbow. He said the lawsuit does allow home removal, 
therefore there is no legal question as to if homes can or cannot be removed. He said 
the bottom line from the Technical and Land group’s standpoint is that it is the right 
time. He said the Land group has been actively managing these vacant homes and 
there are security concerns, access issues, paying utility bills and taxes, and ultimately 
the homes have to be removed for construction of the levee. He said the Technical and 
Land groups recommend they should be removed. 
 
Mr. Nyhof said the levee structure is on hold and if Oxbow had to deal with a flood this 
year, with the condition of Schnell Drive, there would be no chance for flood protection.  
 



In response to a question from Mr. Nyhof on issuing a package on those homes, Mr. 
Dodds said if the committee agrees to proceed, the yellow grouping of the homes could 
be advertised, the bid awarded in early April and have the homes removed this summer. 
 
Mr. Campbell said Clay County purchased two city blocks recently and put it all to a 
contractor with the hope they would try to repurpose as much as possible. He said the 
plan worked well. He said the contractor knows what their schedule is. He said from a 
land management standpoint, he would go along with removal; however, he would want 
some review by the people who hold the checkbook. 
 
Mr. Grubb said he and Mr. Peterson appeared in front of a House subcommittee in 
Bismarck recently and talked about funding. He said there was some criticism about 
continuing expenses in Oxbow. He said Bismarck is also hearing from the other side. 
He said the Legislature is now in crossover and it will be two to three weeks yet for a 
decision about State Water Commission funding. 
 
Mr. Peterson said it has been difficult combatting misinformation and going ahead with 
more home removal might be seen as a stick in the eye. He said he understands the 
logic of getting as much done as quickly as possible; however, politically it would be 
advantageous to wait, get through the session, make sure there is another six-plus 
weeks to inform Bismarck and maybe proceed this summer or fall. He said he is aware 
of the issues in Oxbow with vandalism and nuisances and he is sympathetic; however, 
there are the political realities out west. 
 
Mr. Nyhof said in the southern half of Oxbow there are four blue properties and four 
yellow properties for the next phase. He said the contractor at Oxbow now is willing to 
do the work for nothing. He asked if there was any way to get a change order or some 
impact to that contractor to wipe out everything to the north so the City can set the stage 
for flood protection. He said nothing in the southern half needs to be touched right now, 
those houses are not necessary for flood protection, they are purely for the footprint of 
the levee. He said everything north is needed to protect the City. 
 
Mr. Peterson said it would be a compelling argument if this were done due to necessity 
and not by choice. He said that would be hard evidence to refute. 
 
Mr. Grubb said if there was a plan that clearly explained completing this removal makes 
perfect sense, we could communicate that in Bismarck.  
 
Mr. Boerboom said if the committee moves forward with a bid as it is, the bid opening 
could be set in mid-May after the Legislature is done. He said the committee can always 
delay the bid opening or cancel it. 
 
Mr. Nyhof said in May there will to be some property owners still living on the south end. 
He said for the protection of the City that will to exist after May and the rest of River 
Bend Road, the damage occurring to the street and doing work in summer versus 
winter, he said winter is better for the City and easier for a contractor. 
 



Mr. Campbell said he is concerned about the change order process because of dollar 
amounts and fairness in bidding. He said with a change order for a significant dollar 
amount it might be bypassing the ability for open bidding. 
 
Mr. Boerboom said any additional home removal has to be its own separate bid 
package.  
 
Mr. Brodshaug said the Land group did try to find a developer to move the houses in 
Oxbow, put them on new foundations and sell them; however, it was too much of a risk 
for a developer to take on. He said a developer does not get utility, foundation and dirt 
work done for nothing.  
 
Mitigation Plan Adoption Discussion 
Mr. Dodds said he wanted to have discussion on adopting a mitigation plan. He said his 
team had been working on developing a standalone mitigation plan.  He said the MDNR 
the requested the plan be accelerated and submitted to the MNDR and the State Water 
Commission in the hopes they could engage in dialogue, then go to the Diversion board 
and ask for adoption. He said there were great intentions and his team is very confident 
about the mitigation plan; however, the team has not been able to do any engagement 
with the MDNR or State Water Commission. He said there is value in the Land group 
and the Diversion board to adopt the mitigation plan. The discussion he would like to 
have now, he said, is if the Land group is interested in adopting the plan and are there 
any specific items that need a more thorough discussion, such as other channels, 
groups or meetings that would be helpful. He said Steve Topping, Executive Director of 
Water Management and Structures in Manitoba, is willing to have a discussion with the 
Land group. He said Winnipeg went through similar mitigation issues and some were 
successful and others they would have done differently. He said it was also suggested 
the Land group meet with various farm groups. He said he is not looking for definite 
answers today; however, he wants the group to initiate discussions and to think about 
adopting the plan. 
 
Mr. Grubb suggested the plan be adopted as a draft due to the fact it looks like some 
action was taken. 
 
Mr. Campbell said mitigation so far has been on the North Dakota side. He said there 
have not have been any discussions with property owners on the Minnesota side and 
there might be some concerns in Clay County or Moorhead and he would want those to 
be included in the plan. He said he could agree to a draft; however, he has yet to listen 
to the people of Clay County as to their concerns and if they are being addressed. 
 
Ms. Scherling said there is not enough detail for a final approval. She said she thinks 
about cemeteries and there have been conversations; however, the group is not ready 
to make recommendations for specific cemeteries. She said she likes the idea of 
approving a draft and then work out the details later. 
 
Mr. Grubb said he likes the idea of a draft and a written product that is complete and out 
for review. He said it is a good message to send. 
 



Mr. Dodds said a lot of effort went into the plan and the primary authors are proud of the 
work done, therefore they would like to get some kind of blessing with a draft and then 
continue to work on finer points. There are unresolved issues, he said, and this plan 
does not solve everything, including cemeteries. He said the Corps has identified some 
things and has met with individual cemetery associations. He said Comstock recently 
reached out for information, organic farmland has been acquired in Minnesota and there 
have been other acquisitions in Minnesota, therefore this is not completely isolated from 
the Minnesota side. He said he could provide a copy of the complete mitigation plan to 
the Land group; however, a full copy of the plan is on the Diversion website. 
 
Ms. Mongeou said she is agreeable with the draft; however, meetings should continue, 
especially with farmers and cemetery committees. She said the Land group discussed 
cemeteries one time over a year ago. She said it is important to have individuals and 
residents offer input before it is passed. 
 
Mr. Peterson said a draft is a good idea and it shows the Land group has committed to 
something and would open up opportunities for dialogue. 
 
Upstream Mitigation – Structure Impacts 
Mr. Dodds said he is continuing to refine and set in stone the number of structures 
needed upstream. On a handout to the group, he said the categories in orange are 
those that will need a buyout as they are in the floodway. He said the yellow category is 
other properties outside of the floodway still impacted and may prompt some buyouts or 
other mitigation strategies. He said what he wants to focus on are policy questions, the 
pros and cons of building ring levees, raising a road to save one house and many other 
“what ifs.” He said the green category is properties outside the impact pool or they 
would have minor impacts during a 100-year flood event. He said they fall outside 
mitigation requirements; however, the Corps has committed to doing an analysis on 
some of those in the green category on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Mr. Campbell said he would like to see a map showing how many structures are in each 
county, the floodway and a delineation of counties, states and locations. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:58 p.m. 
 



"

!(

ÛÛ

!(

ÛÛ

£¤

ÛÛ

£¤

ÛÛ

£¤

£¤

!Comstock
Ring Levee

Richland County

Clay County

Wilkin County

!
Oxbow
Hickson
Bakke 

!In Town 
Levees

!
Upstream
Mitigation

Area

!Channel
Phase 1

!Channel
Phase 2

!Channel
Phase 3

!Diversion
Inlet Area

!Southern
Embankment

!Environmental
Monitoring

Areas

46

11

10

36

2

81

20

10

52

Rush River

Wild

Rice R ive
r

Maple River

Sheye n neRiv e r

Red Ri ver

§̈¦94

§̈¦29 WHISKY CREEK

STONY CREEK

S. BRANCH BUFFALORIVE R

BUFFALO RIVER

West Fargo

Fargo

Moorhead

Briarwood

Davenport

Frontier

Harwood

Horace

Prairie Rose

Reiles Acres

Kindred

Christine

Walcott

Argusville

Mapleton

North River

Oxbow

Georgetown

Dilworth Glyndon

Sabin

Wolverton

Comstock

3/10/20173/10/2017

FM Area DiversionFM Area Diversion
Key Acquisition AreasKey Acquisition Areas00 11 22 33 44

M iM i
P:\FM Area Diversion\Projects\Land Acquisition\Project Work Package\!Project Wide\Overall LA Maps\PropertyAcquisitionSevenPhaseMap8x11.mxd

I
Maps are for graphical purposes only.  They do not represent a 
legal survey.  While every effort has been made to ensure that 
these data are accurate and reliable, The Diversion Authority does 
not guarantee the accuracy of the information, and waives any 
warranty or guarantee of any kind, express or implied. The data 
involved in the project is continuously refined and revised; you 
should not rely on this information for technical purposes or 
accuracy.

Diversion Inlet Area
Environmental
Monitoring Areas
Mitigation Projects
Levees
Diversion Channel
Phase 1
Diversion Channel
Phase 2
Diversion Channel
Phase 3
Southern Embankment
Upstream Mitigation
Area

  Item B



!(

ÛÛ

!(

ÛÛ

ÛÛ

£¤

ÛÛ

£¤

£¤

Clay County

Wilkin County

Cass County

Richland
County

46

11

10

36

2

81

20

10

52

§̈¦94

§̈¦29

Briarwood

Davenport

Frontier

Harwood

Horace

Prairie Rose

Reiles Acres

Kindred

Christine

Walcott

Argusville

Mapleton

North River

Oxbow

Georgetown

Dilworth
Glyndon

Sabin

Wolverton

Comstock

West Fargo

Fargo

Moorhead

Date: 3/15/2017 | Coord inate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane North Dakota South FIPS 3302 Feet

Property Ac q uisition
Status ReportI

0 3.51.75
Miles

C:\Projec ts\FM Area Diversion\Projec ts\Land  Ac q uisition\Projec t Work Pac kage\!Projec t Wid e\Overall LA Maps\PropertyStatusReport_OverallStatus11x17.mxd  | Ed ited  by: c wic kenheiser

Any relianc e upon this map is at user’s own risk.  AE2S d oes not warrant the map or its features are either spatially or temporally ac c urate or fit for a partic ular use.

STATUS
Impacted Parcel
Appraisal Pending
In Negotiation
Purchase Agreement Signed
Acquired; Easement Secured
Condemnation for Acquisition  3/15/2017 

Advanced Engineering and 
Environmental Services, Inc.



As of March 14, 2017

Parcel Status Parcel Status

3 parcels total 4 parcels total

1 Acquired 

3 Condemnation 

1 PA Signed 

2 In Negotiation 

Diversion Inlet Control Structure 
(WP 26)

Targeted Completion Date: Complete

County Roads 16 & 17 Roundabout
(WP 28)

Targeted Completion Date: July 2017

In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

Diversion Inlet Area
Property Status Report

DRAFT



As of March 14, 2017
Cultural Mitigation Areas
Property Status Report

Parcel Status

3 parcels total

3 In Negotiations 

Sheyenne River Phase 2 & 3 Sites
(32-CS-5126) Target Completion: Spring 2017 
(32-CS-201) Target Completion: June 1, 2017

Parcel Status

1 parcel total
May change to a Phase 3 Site

Phase 2 site requires an Easement
(Part of Channel Phase 2)

1 Appraisal Pending 

Drain 14 Phase 2 Site
(32-CS-5135) Target Completion: Fall 2017

(Part of Channel Phase 1)

South of Maple River Phase 3 Site
(32-CS-5127) Target Completion: July 1, 2017

Parcel Status

3 parcels total

3 In Negotiations

(Part of Channel Phase 1)

North of Maple River Phase 2 Site
(32-CS-5139) Target Completion: Spring 2017

Parcel Status

3 parcels total

2 Acquired

1 In Negotiations

In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

(Part of Channel Phase 1)

DRAFT



As of March 14, 2017
Environmental Monitoring Areas
Property Status Report

Cass County Richland County Clay County Wilkin County
Parcel Status Parcel Status Parcel Status Parcel Status

259 parcels total 38 parcels total 97 parcels total 8 parcels total

37 Letters Sent

1 Signed

109 Letters Sent

97 On Hold

8 On Hold

Letters Sent/Communication Initiated
Mailed 02/03/17

Letters Sent/Communication Initiated
Mailed 02/23/17

Letters Sent/Communication Initiated Letters Sent/Communication Initiated

150 Signed ROE - Expires 12/31/18 Signed ROE - Expires 12/31/18 Signed ROE Signed ROE

Signed Easement Signed Easement Signed Easement Signed Easement

DRAFT



As of March 14, 2017
Diversion Channel
Property Status Report

Phase 1

Parcel Status Parcel Status Parcel StatusHard Costs paid to 
Property Owners

Hard Costs paid to 
Property Owners

Hard Costs paid to 
Property Owners

$25.3M
budgeted

$13.3M
budgeted

TBD
budgeted

$1.84M
spent

$2.92M
spent $0

spent

63 
in 
negotiations

23 
remain

30 
Appraisals 
pending

18
Appraisals 
pending
5 PA signed

Target Completion: Feb. 2018 Target Completion: Feb. 2019 Target Completion: Feb. 2020

6 Acquired 
92 parcels total 64 parcels total 210 parcels total

11 Acquired 

Phase 2 Phase 3

Spent Spent Spent

Budgeted Budgeted Budgeted

In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

In Negotiation In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed Agreement Signed

Condemnation Condemnation

Acquired Parcel Acquired Parcel

$15M

$20M

$25M

$30M

$35M

$40M

$10M

$5M

$0M

$15M

$20M

$25M

$30M

$35M

$40M

$10M

$5M

$0M

$15M

$20M

$25M

$30M

$35M

$40M

$10M

$5M

$0MDRAFT



As of March 14, 2017

Parcel Status

11 parcels total

2 Communication Initiated 

9 Remaining 

Drayton Dam Replacement
(WP 40)

Targeted Completion Date: July 1, 2017

Mitigation Projects
Property Status Report

Wild Rice Dam Removal
(WP 36)

Targeted Completion Date:July 1, 2017

Parcel Status

2 parcels total

2 Communication Initiated
Note: Awaiting 
scope of work from 
USACE to prepare 
the ROE/Easement 
language

Note: Awaiting 
scope of work from 
USACE to prepare 
the ROE/Easement 
language

Letters Sent/Communication Initiated Letters Sent/Communication Initiated

Signed ROE Signed ROE

Signed Easement Signed Easement

DRAFT



As of March 14, 2017
Southern Embankment
Property Status Report

Parcel Status

Parcel Status

6 parcels total

7 parcels total

3 Acquired 
1 Agreement Signed 

2 Remain 

7 Remain 

Wild Rice Control Structure

Red River Control Structure

ND Embankment
Parcel Status

19 parcels total

19 Remain

28 Remain

16 Remain

(Part of Channel Phase 1)

(Part of Channel Phase 1)

MN Embankment

Limited Service Spillway

Parcel Status

Parcel Status

28 parcels total

16 parcels total

In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

(Part of ND Embankment)

(Part of ND Embankment)DRAFT



As of March 14, 2017
Levee Projects
Property Status Report

In Town Levees
Parcel Status Parcel Status Parcel StatusHard Costs paid to 

Property Owners
Hard Costs paid to 
Property Owners

Hard Costs paid to 
Property Owners

$36.3M
spent

$37.4M
budgeted

$64.2M
budgeted

TBD
budget

$55.5M
spent*

99 parcels total 28 parcels total 16 parcels total

OHB Ring Levee Comstock Ring Levee

Spent

Spent

Budgeted

Budgeted Budgeted

In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending

Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

20 Acquired

4 Agreement 
Signed

4 In Negotiation

* Includes parcels 
purchased outside the 
OHB Ring Levee

16 Remain

$50M

$40M

$30M

$20M

$10M

$0M

$100M

$80M

$60M

$40M

$20M

$0MDRAFT



As of March 14, 2017
Upstream Mitigation Area
Property Status Report

Parcel Status
120 parcels total

720 parcels total
Structure Sites

Flowage Easements

Letters Sent/
Communication 
Initiated
Signed ROE

Signed Easement
In Negotiation

Appraisal Pending Agreement Signed

Condemnation

Acquired Parcel

DRAFT



Richland County, ND

§̈¦29

Christine

Walcott

Colfax

Abercrombie

Dwight

Wahpeton

Fairmount

Great Bend

HankinsonLidgerwood

Mantador

Wyndmere

Barney
Mooreton

FM Area Diversion
Project Induced Impacts
during a 100-Year Flood

greater than 1 inch

FM Area Diversion Project
Induced Impacts in

Richland County
100-Year Flood Event0 73.5

Miles

C:\Projects\FM Area Diversion\Projects\Standard Map Gallery\Map 3 - Upstream Impacts (red blue)\RichlandCountyAcresImpacted-100yr.mxd | Edited by: cwickenheiser

Any reliance upon this map is at user’s own risk.  AE2S does not warrant the map or its features are either spatially or temporally accurate or fit for a particular use.

I
3/8/2017

Informational Sheet
Richland County
Richland County Impacts

• Due to the dry dam, impacts would only be seen during large
flood events when the Diversion Project was operated.

• There would be no impacts until water in the Red River exceeds
35 feet in Fargo. Thirty-feet is considered major flood stage.

• 42% of the acres impacted are already included in the current
FEMA 100-year floodplain.

• If the Diversion Project would have been built 100 years ago,
it would have operated an estimated 11 times for a total of 69
days.

• During a 100-year flood event, five residential structures would
be impacted, two of these structures would be impacted with
less than six inches during a 100-year event

• During a 100-year flood, approximately 6,300 acres would have
an additional water between one inch to a maximum of three
feet.

• The additional duration of flooding is estimated to be two to
three days.

Richland County Mitigation
• Flowage Easements will be purchased on impacted land. They

will be valued by independent, professional appraisal.
• Development can continue.
• Impacted residences and structures will be acquired in

accordance with state and federal law.
• Project impacts will be mitigated consistent with the Mitigation

Plan online at www.fmdiversion.com/studies-technical-docu-
ments/

Richland County Benefits
• 1,872 Richland County residents, 22% of the county

workforce, work in Fargo-Moorhead.
• Flood protection for regional resources including healthcare,

entertainment, universities/colleges, transportation and other
services.

Affected Acres by Type 

Agriculture

4,345 acres

Total acres
6,306 acres total

1,103
acres

394
388

Wetlands

Forest

Developed

Open Water

March 2017



Wilkin County, MN

Breckenridge

Campbell

Doran

Foxhome

Nashua

Kent

Rothsay

Wolverton

£¤75

§̈¦94

FM Area Diversion
Project Induced Impacts
during a 100-Year Flood

greater than 1 inch

FM Area Diversion Project
Induced Impacts in

Wilkin County
100-Year Flood Event0 63

Miles

C:\Projects\FM Area Diversion\Projects\Standard Map Gallery\Map 3 - Upstream Impacts (red blue)\WilkinCountyAcresImpacted-100yr.mxd | Edited by: cwickenheiser

Any reliance upon this map is at user’s own risk.  AE2S does not warrant the map or its features are either spatially or temporally accurate or fit for a particular use.

I
3/8/2017

Informational Sheet
Wilkin County

March 2017

Wilkin County Impacts
• Due to the dry dam, impacts would only be seen during large

flood events when the Diversion Project was operated.
• There would be no impacts until water in the Red River exceeds

35 feet in Fargo. Thirty-feet is considered major flood stage.
• 46% of the acres impacted are already included in the current

FEMA 100-year floodplain.
• If the Diversion Project would have been built 100 years ago,

it would have operated an estimated 11 times for a total of 69
days.

• During a 100-year flood event, six residential structures would
be impacted.

• During a 100-year flood, approximately 3,443 acres would have
an additional water between one inch to a maximum of three
feet.

• The additional duration of flooding is estimated to be two to
three days.

Wilkin County Mitigation
• Flowage Easements will be purchased on impacted land. They

will be valued by independent, professional appraisal.
• Development can continue.
• Impacted residences and structures will be acquired in accor-

dance with state and federal law. 
• Project impacts will be mitigated consistent with the Mitigation

Plan online at www.fmdiversion.com/studies-technical-docu-
ments/

Wilkin County Benefits
• 318 Wilkin County residents, 8% of the county workforce,

work in Fargo-Moorhead.
• Flood protection for regional resources including healthcare,

entertainment, universities/colleges, transportation and other
services.

Affected Acres by Type 

Agriculture

Wetlands

Forest

Developed

Open Water

576
acres

2,268 acres343 acres

207 acres

Total acres
3,433 acres total 


	Minutes Item A
	Property Aquisition Report Item B
	Richland Impact Item C
	Wilkin Impact Item D
	Land_Management_Committee_Agenda_03.22.17.pdf
	Minutes Item A
	Property Aquisition Report Item B
	Richland Impact Item C
	Wilkin Impact Item D



DIVERSION AUTHORITY


Land Management Committee


City Commission Room


Fargo City Hall


Wednesday, February 22, 2017

3:00 p.m.

Present: Cass County Commission Representative Mary Scherling (via teleconference); Clay County Commission Representative Kevin Campbell; Clay County Commission Representative Jenny Mongeau; Fargo City Administrator Bruce Grubb; Fargo Division Engineer Nathan Boerboom; Cass County Commission Representative Chad Peterson; Oxbow Mayor Jim Nyhof.

Others present: Eric Dodds - AE2S; Mark Brodshaug - Cass County Joint Water Resource District (CCJWRD)

Absent: Cass County Joint Water Resource District Representative Rodger Olson; Moorhead Mayor Del Rae Williams; Moorhead City Engineer Bob Zimmerman; Moorhead City Council Representative Heidi Durand; Fargo City Commission Representative John Strand.

The meeting was called to order by Mark Brodshaug.

Agenda Review


Eric Dodds said a letter from United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) regarding deadlines for land acquisitions for cultural resource testing and biotic and geomorphic monitoring was added to the agenda.  Kevin Campbell moved the Order of Agenda be approved. Jenny Mongeau seconded the motion. All the members voted aye and the motion was declared carried.


Approve January 11, 2017 Minutes


Mr. Campbell moved the minutes from the January 11, 2017 meeting be approved.  Mr. Nyhof seconded the motion. All the members voted aye and the motion was declared carried.

Property Acquisition Update

Mr. Dodds said the Property Acquisition Status Report includes updates of Diversion channel Phase 1, which is the north end of the channel and sites for the Maple River and Sheyenne River aqueducts. He said Phase 2 is all other properties north of Interstate 94 along the channel. He said opportunistic acquisitions could be anywhere; however, most have been in the staging area. He said monitoring sites are scattered across Cass and Richland counties and his team is helping the Corps get rights-of-entry and easements on those sites. He said these are areas where the Corps has committed to long-term environmental monitoring and adaptive management for the project. He said the Corps starts by monitoring biotic conditions before the project starts and establishes a baseline. He said as the project operates, the Corps will continue to monitor those conditions and if anything unique happens, they will adapt and manage those sites accordingly. He said this involves many parcels upstream and downstream and not all of the sites are along the channel. He said culturally sensitive areas need to be mitigated prior to construction and there is pre-design work that needs to be done, so his team is working with the Corps to secure those lands.

Mr. Brodshaug said there will be Minnesota biotic monitoring sites at some point in Clay and Wilkin counties. He said the Corps is still working with the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) so the decision was made to start baseline work in North Dakota, then come back at a later point and establish a baseline in Minnesota.  He said there are no requests for Minnesota properties yet. 


In response to a question from Mr. Boerboom about a timeline for getting land for the Wild Rice and Drayton dam projects, Mr. Dodds said it depends on funding for the Corps for those projects this year. He said if the Corps does get funding, those two dam projects are in their work plan. He said the Corps would have to obligate those dollars by fall. He said there have been meetings with the City of Drayton and American Crystal Sugar and it seems there is willingness to secure those land rights.

In response to a question from Ms. Mongeau about Minnesota and Clay County biotic monitoring sites and when will the locations will be known, Mr. Dodds said locations have been identified and residents will be getting letters; however, he was not sure who would send out the letters.

Mr. Campbell said there is sensitivity of the position with the MDNR and there is no activity in Minnesota; therefore, that is partially why there is no activity. 

Mr. Dodds shared a heat map with the Land group, which showed a range of appraised or acquired land values. He said those who follow farmland values know values have changed quite a bit. He said with land prices low, now would be a good time to buy. He said the Phase 2 land parcels map shows the status of the land and parcel acquisitions. 

In response to a question from Mr. Campbell as to if there have been any voluntary buyouts, Mr. Brodshaug said there were some voluntary buyouts.


CCJWRD Update


Mr. Dodds said the letter from the Corps added to the Agenda packet was to put some things in writing about deadlines for acquisitions of property. He said the Corps wants to know when the sites in North Dakota will be ready for biotic study and cultural mitigation. He said three sites for cultural mitigation have been identified. He said there are a lot of moving parts; however, he will be drafting a letter back to the Corps by February 27, 2017, after a discussion with the CCJWRD board. He said, in particular, committing to a deadline for having the land rights may require the joint board to take some actions if voluntary deals are not completed and court action may be necessary. He said he feels confident the land can be acquired by June 1, 2017 as noted in the letter from the Corps, and he feels substantially more confident with a July 1, 2017 date. 


Mr. Brodshaug said there have been many talks about Phase 1 buyouts. He said the first deadlines are cultural work that is a priority due to requirements of the National Historic Protection Act.


In response to a question from Ms. Scherling about the letter and is there a reason time constraints are so short, Mr. Dodds said the Corps has the responsibility of mitigating the cultural sites prior to construction on the channel. The Corps wants to mitigate those sites in 2017, he said, and right now, the P3 schedule suggests a financial close with the P3 contractor a year from now. He said the Corps has to complete cultural mitigation work on two sites, which are archaeological digs and they know there are artifacts. He said the cultural mitigation process will take about four to five months; therefore, access to the land is needed by the middle of this year to complete the cultural work prior to the 2018 construction season. He said work to secure those rights is continuing. He said a third site does not have the full extent of an archaeological dig yet; however, potholing in the area is needed to determine the extent of artifacts.


Mr. Brodshaug said the locations of most of these have been known and the letter is confirming a deadline for contracting purposes.

In response to a question from Ms. Scherling as to if landowners were being cooperative, Mr. Brodshaug said landowners were being cooperative; however, there are details and differences in valuations and talks are ongoing. 

Oxbow Home Removals


Mr. Dodds provided a map of Oxbow indicating green parcels are build-ready and blue parcels are properties where the home removal project is ongoing. He said six of 11 homes in the blue area have been removed and will be repurposed. He said the Finance Committee wanted to know if the Land group was comfortable proceeding with the next phase of home removal in Oxbow. The two primary questions, he said, include making sure there are as many opportunities as possible for reuse of Oxbow homes and any homes bought for the Diversion project. He said the city and county have been through hundreds of buyouts over the last several years and tried different approaches. He said the best approach so far has been to package up a number of homes, issue a removal construction package that requires the contractor to move the homes, demolish the foundations, remove utilities and backfill and establish it ready for construction. He said contractors then have the opportunity to sell anything above ground and let the market dictate whether there is an interest in flood buyout homes or not. In the first round, he said, there were 11 homes and the contractor sold or is going to repurpose eight of them. He said they also received a very good bid price from the contractor. The second question from Finance, he said, is now the right time to be moving forward with the next round of home removal. He said there is lawsuit activity and an injunction against levee construction in Oxbow. He said the lawsuit does allow home removal, therefore there is no legal question as to if homes can or cannot be removed. He said the bottom line from the Technical and Land group’s standpoint is that it is the right time. He said the Land group has been actively managing these vacant homes and there are security concerns, access issues, paying utility bills and taxes, and ultimately the homes have to be removed for construction of the levee. He said the Technical and Land groups recommend they should be removed.


Mr. Nyhof said the levee structure is on hold and if Oxbow had to deal with a flood this year, with the condition of Schnell Drive, there would be no chance for flood protection. 

In response to a question from Mr. Nyhof on issuing a package on those homes, Mr. Dodds said if the committee agrees to proceed, the yellow grouping of the homes could be advertised, the bid awarded in early April and have the homes removed this summer.

Mr. Campbell said Clay County purchased two city blocks recently and put it all to a contractor with the hope they would try to repurpose as much as possible. He said the plan worked well. He said the contractor knows what their schedule is. He said from a land management standpoint, he would go along with removal; however, he would want some review by the people who hold the checkbook.


Mr. Grubb said he and Mr. Peterson appeared in front of a House subcommittee in Bismarck recently and talked about funding. He said there was some criticism about continuing expenses in Oxbow. He said Bismarck is also hearing from the other side. He said the Legislature is now in crossover and it will be two to three weeks yet for a decision about State Water Commission funding.


Mr. Peterson said it has been difficult combatting misinformation and going ahead with more home removal might be seen as a stick in the eye. He said he understands the logic of getting as much done as quickly as possible; however, politically it would be advantageous to wait, get through the session, make sure there is another six-plus weeks to inform Bismarck and maybe proceed this summer or fall. He said he is aware of the issues in Oxbow with vandalism and nuisances and he is sympathetic; however, there are the political realities out west.

Mr. Nyhof said in the southern half of Oxbow there are four blue properties and four yellow properties for the next phase. He said the contractor at Oxbow now is willing to do the work for nothing. He asked if there was any way to get a change order or some impact to that contractor to wipe out everything to the north so the City can set the stage for flood protection. He said nothing in the southern half needs to be touched right now, those houses are not necessary for flood protection, they are purely for the footprint of the levee. He said everything north is needed to protect the City.


Mr. Peterson said it would be a compelling argument if this were done due to necessity and not by choice. He said that would be hard evidence to refute.

Mr. Grubb said if there was a plan that clearly explained completing this removal makes perfect sense, we could communicate that in Bismarck. 

Mr. Boerboom said if the committee moves forward with a bid as it is, the bid opening could be set in mid-May after the Legislature is done. He said the committee can always delay the bid opening or cancel it.


Mr. Nyhof said in May there will to be some property owners still living on the south end. He said for the protection of the City that will to exist after May and the rest of River Bend Road, the damage occurring to the street and doing work in summer versus winter, he said winter is better for the City and easier for a contractor.

Mr. Campbell said he is concerned about the change order process because of dollar amounts and fairness in bidding. He said with a change order for a significant dollar amount it might be bypassing the ability for open bidding.

Mr. Boerboom said any additional home removal has to be its own separate bid package. 


Mr. Brodshaug said the Land group did try to find a developer to move the houses in Oxbow, put them on new foundations and sell them; however, it was too much of a risk for a developer to take on. He said a developer does not get utility, foundation and dirt work done for nothing. 

Mitigation Plan Adoption Discussion


Mr. Dodds said he wanted to have discussion on adopting a mitigation plan. He said his team had been working on developing a standalone mitigation plan.  He said the MDNR the requested the plan be accelerated and submitted to the MNDR and the State Water Commission in the hopes they could engage in dialogue, then go to the Diversion board and ask for adoption. He said there were great intentions and his team is very confident about the mitigation plan; however, the team has not been able to do any engagement with the MDNR or State Water Commission. He said there is value in the Land group and the Diversion board to adopt the mitigation plan. The discussion he would like to have now, he said, is if the Land group is interested in adopting the plan and are there any specific items that need a more thorough discussion, such as other channels, groups or meetings that would be helpful. He said Steve Topping, Executive Director of Water Management and Structures in Manitoba, is willing to have a discussion with the Land group. He said Winnipeg went through similar mitigation issues and some were successful and others they would have done differently. He said it was also suggested the Land group meet with various farm groups. He said he is not looking for definite answers today; however, he wants the group to initiate discussions and to think about adopting the plan.

Mr. Grubb suggested the plan be adopted as a draft due to the fact it looks like some action was taken.

Mr. Campbell said mitigation so far has been on the North Dakota side. He said there have not have been any discussions with property owners on the Minnesota side and there might be some concerns in Clay County or Moorhead and he would want those to be included in the plan. He said he could agree to a draft; however, he has yet to listen to the people of Clay County as to their concerns and if they are being addressed.


Ms. Scherling said there is not enough detail for a final approval. She said she thinks about cemeteries and there have been conversations; however, the group is not ready to make recommendations for specific cemeteries. She said she likes the idea of approving a draft and then work out the details later.

Mr. Grubb said he likes the idea of a draft and a written product that is complete and out for review. He said it is a good message to send.


Mr. Dodds said a lot of effort went into the plan and the primary authors are proud of the work done, therefore they would like to get some kind of blessing with a draft and then continue to work on finer points. There are unresolved issues, he said, and this plan does not solve everything, including cemeteries. He said the Corps has identified some things and has met with individual cemetery associations. He said Comstock recently reached out for information, organic farmland has been acquired in Minnesota and there have been other acquisitions in Minnesota, therefore this is not completely isolated from the Minnesota side. He said he could provide a copy of the complete mitigation plan to the Land group; however, a full copy of the plan is on the Diversion website.


Ms. Mongeou said she is agreeable with the draft; however, meetings should continue, especially with farmers and cemetery committees. She said the Land group discussed cemeteries one time over a year ago. She said it is important to have individuals and residents offer input before it is passed.

Mr. Peterson said a draft is a good idea and it shows the Land group has committed to something and would open up opportunities for dialogue.


Upstream Mitigation – Structure Impacts


Mr. Dodds said he is continuing to refine and set in stone the number of structures needed upstream. On a handout to the group, he said the categories in orange are those that will need a buyout as they are in the floodway. He said the yellow category is other properties outside of the floodway still impacted and may prompt some buyouts or other mitigation strategies. He said what he wants to focus on are policy questions, the pros and cons of building ring levees, raising a road to save one house and many other “what ifs.” He said the green category is properties outside the impact pool or they would have minor impacts during a 100-year flood event. He said they fall outside mitigation requirements; however, the Corps has committed to doing an analysis on some of those in the green category on a case-by-case basis.

Mr. Campbell said he would like to see a map showing how many structures are in each county, the floodway and a delineation of counties, states and locations.

The meeting adjourned at 3:58 p.m.



